
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
APRIL 30, 2013 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Celske called the meeting to order at 7:06 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Dal Compo polled the members present:  Zoning Board members Celske, Dufern, Karls, 
Murren, and Schneider.  Also present were Karl Warwick, Village Administrator, Building 
Official Peter Vernon, and John Donahue, Village Attorney. Member Rosch was absent. 
 
Village President Nunamaker and Chief Lukasik were also in attendance.  
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
A motion was made by Karls and seconded by Dufern to approve the minutes from the  
February 27, 2013 meeting with one change.  A voice vote followed with all in favor.  The 
motion carried. 
 
ZONING BOARD CASE 2013-04 SPECIAL USE PERMIT, OUTDOOR SEATING: 314 
LINCOLN AVENUE 
Chairman Celske recognized Cesar as a representative of El Sombrero Restaurant. Chairman 
Celske swore him in. He further acknowledged seeing the proof of signage (but asked Cesar 
for a hard copy of the picture) and the required certified mail receipts. 
 
Chairman Celske asked Mr. Vernon to summarize the petition.  The El Sombrero owners wish 
to put an outdoor seating area on the side of the restaurant building towards Rt.14.  It will 
consist of an area one third the depth of the whole yard.  It will be finished with pavers and a 
stylized picket fence.  It will be out of the right of way and out of the public access.   
 
Chairman Celske introduced into consideration a diagram of the proposed seating area and 
called it Exhibit A.  He asked Cesar to explain his petition.  Cesar said that the patio would be 
16’ x 32’.  Three feet away from the patio will be a wood fence either 3.5 or 4 feet high.  It will 
have a handicapped accessible ramp.  
 
Attorney Donahue stated that Mr. Wurful is the owner of the grassy area being referenced.          
 
Member Murren asked what the lighting and music situation will be.  He further asked what 
the hours for the outside seating will be.  He was told that it will be the same hours as for the  
 
 

1 
 



restaurant: Sunday through Thursday until 9:00 p.m., Friday and Saturday until 10:00 p.m.  
Member Murren further asked if alcohol will be served outside.   
Member Dufern asked how liquor on the patio will be policed, so that people do not leave the 
premises with it.  Member Murren asked if the handicapped access ramp would be used for 
other access; he was told no.            
The members reviewed the staff recommendations memo drafted by Administrator Warwick. 
The following bullet points were reviewed: 
 --License requirements 
 
Under item #11 regarding compliance with the State Plumbing Code for public toilets, Mr. 
Vernon stated that the two toilets already existing should be sufficient.   
 
 --Sale and consumption of alcoholic beverages 
Under this subheading, Member Schneider noted that item “C” “Supervision’s” phrasing of 
“the outdoor seating area shall be supervised at all times” was overly restrictive, and that the 
words “at all times” should be struck.   
 
Administrator Warwick noted that the outdoor seating area must be restaurant style.  Attorney 
Donahue added that it should not be a beer garden.   
 
Member Dufern asked Chief Lukasik if there were any incidents with regard to the Tinman’s 
outdoor seating.  Chief Lukasik said that Tinman’s did not comply with regard to the fencing 
recommendation, so they stopped doing outdoor seating all together.   
 
It was noted that the only residence in proximity to the El Sombrero proposed outdoor seating 
is the upstairs apartment on Lincoln.   
 
A MOTION was made by Celske and seconded by Dufern to accept the findings of fact 
with regard to the El Sombrero/314 Lincoln special use petition for outdoor seating.  A 
roll call vote was taken.  Celske—yes, Dufern—yes, Karls—yes, Murren—yes, 
Schneider—yes.  Motion Carried. 
 
A MOTION was made by Murren and seconded by Dufern to recommend for approval 
the special use permit to allow outdoor seating at 314 Lincoln Ave.   A roll call vote was 
taken.  Celske--yes, Dufern--yes, Karls—yes, Murren--yes. Schneider—yes. Motion 
Carried. 
 
Chairman Celske explained that the Zoning Board only makes recommendations to the Village 
Board, who will have the final say.  The application next goes to the Public Health and Safety 
Commission, who meet the first Tuesday of the month.  
 
Case 2013-04 was concluded at 7:30 p.m   
 
OTHER BUSINESS- 
Administrator Warwick explained that there will be a special meeting of the Village Board to 
decide on whether to combine the Finance and Public Health and Safety Committees with the 
Village Board.   
 

2 
 



Member Karls asked for further clarification on the Tinman’s outdoor seating situation.  It was 
noted that until they install proper fencing, they will not be permitted to serve alcohol in the 
outdoor seating area but their permit is otherwise still in effect. 
 
Member Murren asked if there was any news on Moretti’s.  Chairman Celske said that he had 
talked with Mark Hoffman and they are not currently ready to go forward.  Member Murren 
asked if there is any way to go after him for the condition of the building.  Mr. Vernon said that 
Mr. Hoffman had some tuck pointing done and other small maintenance items.   
 
Member Murren asked about the status of New China.  Mr. Vernon said that the Village is 
trying to help them move along, but there are still a few loose ends.  Administrator Warwick 
said that New China was given a façade grant.   
 
NEXT MEETING—(currently not known) 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
A motion was made by Murren and seconded by Karls to adjourn the meeting.  Motion carried 
unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 7:36 p.m. 
 
      
Daniel A. Celske, Chairman 
 
      
Alison Dal Compo, Secretary 
 
      
Date approved 
 

3 
 


